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May 8, 2025

Prospective Respondents

RE: Addendum #4 25-38 Fountain Community Center Complex “Northern 
Region Resiliency Center” Construction Project M0169 

Please accept this as Addendum No. 4 for the above referenced solicitation. 

The Bid deadline is hereby extended to 2:00 pm (CDT) on Tuesday, May 20, 2025. 

The following questions have been received.  The County’s answers follow in bold. 

1. We do not find hardware sets for CC-09, CC-14, CC-34, CC-35 and CC-36, 
please advise CC-09 Is in interior service window for kitchen, therefore 
same hardware set as CC-06, CC-07, and CC-08.  CC-14 is set #6 found on 
page 16 of specification document 08 71 00 - Finish Door Hardware.  CC-
34 has been added to set #2 of specification document.  CC-35 and CC-36 
are exterior gates see Door Types Legend on Drawing A6.A02. Updated 
specification document 08 71 00 Finish Door Hardware attached for 
reference.

2. We are unable to locate hardware specs for the following: CC-09, CC-34, CC-
35 and CC-36. Please provide hardware information. CC-09 Is in interior 
service window for kitchen, therefore same hardware set as CC-06, CC-
07, and CC-08.  CC-14 is set #6 found on page 16 of specification 
document 08 71 00 - Finish Door Hardware.  CC-34 has been added to set 
#2 of specification document.  CC-35 and CC-36 are exterior gates see 
Door Types Legend on Drawing A6.A02. Updated specification document 
08 71 00 Finish Door Hardware attached for reference.

3. Do you have any sign specification elevations for this project? Sign room 
locations and mounting locations are identified on Construction Drawing 
A6.A05

4. Please provide the structural concrete details for the ticket booth, trash 
enclosure, irrigation pump house & HVAC equip. enclosure, storage tank 
enclosure, electrical enclosure, and well enclosure. No footing details are 
shown and some slab thicknesses are missing. Please see attached 
structural drawings S001, S350, and S351.

5. Please provide additional information on what is to be specifically included for 
the Alternative Landscaping pricing. And what, if any, needs to be included in 
the base bid other than grassing/seeding, sod. Include grassing/seeding, sod 
in base bid and all other landscaping in alternates 



6. Section: 096723 – Seamless Resinous Flooring, Part 2, 2.3 - The basis of design 
for the seamless resinous flooring is noted as Torginol and Dur-A-Flex. The 
system breakdown notes only Torginol. Torginol is an aggregate manufacturer, 
and does not make epoxy systems. There is no information as to what specific 
system from Dur-A-Flex is required. 

a. Can you let us know what data sheet you are pulling the system physical 
properties from (2.3 sub E)? See Attached data sheet “dur-a-chip-
product-data-sheet-v1” and update specification “09 67 23-Seamless 
Resinous Flooring” 

b. What is the name of the epoxy system that you would like to have 
installed? See Attached data sheet “dur-a-chip-product-data-sheet-v1” 
and updated specification “09 67 23-Seamless Resinous Flooring”. 

7. Change the Terminalia Buceras (Black Olive) to something native like River Birch, 
Shumard Oak, Or Winged Elm.  Black Olive is not cold hardy and is recommended 
for South Florida...not Northwest Florida. It is USDA hardiness zone 11. Bay 
County is zone 9 Alternates or Substitution are approved or discussed after 
contract has been awarded. Bid project per plans and specifications.    
Landscaping is being bid as an Alternative.

8. Tree Sizes are not listed. I would recommend to Bay County LDR minimum. 30 
gallon or 65 gallon at most. If you don't specify height, you'll get varied bids. The 
first plan had huge sizes which no grower has available. See attached drawing 
revision 250505_BCNRC_ADD#4_L.01

9. The shrub shown is Ligustrum Sinense. It doesn't specify Sunshine or Variegated 
(which I do NOT recommend). It also doesn't specify size. It should be 3 or 7 gallon. 
Or specify a height. See attached drawing revision 
250505_BCNRC_ADD#4_L.01

10. 4- On sheet L.02 it shows (6) Crepe Myrtle. Again, no size or variety indicated. I 
recommend Natchez Crepe Myrtle-multi trunk 30 gallon. See attached drawing 
revision 250505_BCNRC_ADD#4_L.01

11. The plans do not specify what style lock for the double doors are required. It does 
show locations for door, strike crash, bar, and electronic magnetic lock at every 
door commonly you only get one style lock per door. Are all of the doors crash 
bars? Or will each door get a electronic door strike? Door hardware can be found 
in construction manual section 08 71 00 - Door Hardware. This question was 
addressed in a previous addendum. Please refer to any previous addendum 
for changes to specifications and/or drawings.  Updated specification 
document 08 71 00 Finish Door Hardware attached for reference.

12. We could not find any defining or specific information regarding the dumpster gates 
on either the drawings or the specs. Please advise where the information can be 



found. Dumpster Gates are to be standard swing gates as specified in 
document 32 31 13 Section 2.4.

13. I don’t see a collateral load specified for the PEMB 54,000 sq. ft. roof pavilion?
Please see attached structural drawings S001 

14. I see the roof specified is a 3” IMP.  There are no walls on this structure so I don’t 
know why you need a insulated sandwich panel unless you plan to enclose in the 
future.  If that is the case we need to know for a proper design. Refer to 
construction manual 07 42 13 - Steel Clad Insulated Building panels for 
specifics and basis of design. Updated specifications document 07 42 13-
Steel Clad Insulated Building Panels attached for reference.

15. Is there a wage determination associated with this project? If so, please provide 
determination, or the General Decision number and date. Yes, it is General 
Decision Number FL20250005 dated March 14, 2025 and begins on page 
2,116 of the solicitation documents.

16. Please confirm whether the PEMB contractor needs to field paint the frames or if 
another contractor will do this. PEMB contractor to field paint the frames. 
Please refer to construction manual document 09 96 00a – High 
Performance Coating and 09 96 00b -Fountain Hi- Performance Coating 
Data Sheets for specifics.

17. The East Elevation on Sheet A2.A01 shows what looks like tube steel fencing on 
the south side of the building. There is no call-out or detail. All the other fencing 
is chain link. Please clarify. Architectural Drawing A1.A01 calls this out as 6’ 
aluminum powder coating fence & gate with panic hardware.

18. The architectural drawings refer to the POD roof panels as steel-clad-insulated-
metal-panels (07-42-13). However, this spec is specifically for an IMP wall panel 
(Metlspan CF Architectural), which is not a roof panel. - Please clarify if the roof 
panel needs to be a standing seam (Metlspan CFR) or a screw down panel 
(Metlspan LS-36 Insulated roof panel). Per Section 07 61 00 Paragraph 2.4.B 
mechanically seamed panels with min. 2” high profile.

19. Is e-Verify required for this project? Yes, see section 15 on page 45 of the 
solicitation. 

20. Are subcontractors required to provide a payment & performance bond? Bay 
County only requires a payment and performance bond from the Prime 
Contractor.  The Prime Contractor can require payment & performance 
bonds from their subcontractors if they desire to do so.

21. Would the County consider extending the bid date some time due to the release 
of addendum and the anticipation of addendum #4 being released in order to 



provide for ample to time to prepare a thorough submittal. Yes, the bid deadline 
has been extended to 2:00 pm (CDT) on Tuesday, May 20, 2025.

22. Please provide Plant sizes. See attached drawing revision 
250505_BCNRC_ADD#4_L.01

23. Electrical Building F is shown as 6' x 4' on A0.03 and 9'-6" x 6'-6" on E1.0B, 
please clarify.  Equipment as shown on electrical will not fit with clearances 
as shown in architectural drawings.

24. Sheet A1.A02 appears to show 17 canopy lights, these lights are not shown on 
the electrical drawings.  Please clarify. Lighting as indicated on E1.0B. See 
attached architectural drawing revision 250507_BCNRC_ADD#4_A1.A02

All respondents shall acknowledge receipt of this addendum by signing and submitting, 
with their bid, the addendum acknowledgement form included in the Bid package. 

Regards, 

Scott Nabers 
Assistant Purchasing Director 
Bay County Purchasing Department 
(850) 248-8270 
purchasing@baycountyfl.gov


